FAST DRAFT RFP QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS (3)

23 Jun 00

Legend (Indicates which part of the team answered the question):  

CT= Contracting Team
TT= Technical Team
MT= Management Team

PRIC = Pricing Team        PM = Program Manager   PRAG = PRAG

Please note that these questions are not numbered in sequential order.  We have received over 320 questions.  The questions, numbered in a Master List, have been and will continue to be posted as answers are completed.  

1.  (CT/TT) B Subsection E X016

The exclusion to reimbursement of travel to pick up repair parts may significantly increase contractor indirect costs for all D/TOs thereby increasing overall Government cost.  Suggest allowance be added to allow reimbursement of travel for pickup of repair parts if outside of local area travel.

Answer:  The intention is that the contractor will accomplish the necessary Delivery/Task Order planning to preposition repair parts or take required repair parts necessary for task accomplishment.  Reimbursement of travel to pick up repair parts within the local area is excluded.

CLIN will read as follows:  

Travel and per diem costs in support of items X001 – X015 as approved by the Contracting Officer.  IAW FAR Part 31.  Excluded are travel costs associated with backfill of personnel.  This is a cost reimbursable item.  

8.  (CT) H-906b 

The FAST ordering procedures currently do not address debriefing of contractors not selected for DO/TO award when an order is competed.  A debriefing will allow the contractors to determine proposal deficiencies and institute corrective action for future responses to RFOPs, ensuring better products for the Government.

Answer:  Debriefings are not normally conducted at the Delivery / Task Order level.  However, should the ordering PCO feel that debriefings would be in order, instructions / information would be included in the RFOP and resultant D/TO.  

9.  (TT / CT) IB-445 

This paragraph states, "These goals are not additive to the 23 percent requirement." Page 71, Section L, Paragraph 4.5.1b states that "use of SDB concerns (target versus binding commitment) independent of the requirement to subcontract 23 percent of the total dollars to small businesses;" Please provide clarification on if the SDB percentage goals are included in the 23 percent requirement or if they are in addition to the 23 percent requirement.

Answer:  The SDB percentage goals are a part of the 23 percent requirement (or higher if proposed).  

17.  (PRAG) L-903/7.3 

The template for the Performance History Matrix utilizes single line spacing, yet Section L-903, Paragraph 2.3, Page 65 requires pages to be double-spaced. Is single line spacing allowed in the Performance History Matrix?

Answer:  Yes, single spacing is allowed in the Performance History Matrix

22.  (TT) Labor Categories 

Currently there is no labor category for an entry-level engineer with less than 2 years experience. Several engineering tasks can be effectively and efficiently performed by entry-level engineering personnel at a cost savings to the Government. Suggest addition of an entry-level engineer with less than 2 years experience.

Answer: We do not plan to add an entry-level engineer.  While there may be several engineering tasks that could be performed by entry level engineering personnel with less than two years experience, the lower hourly rate would be expected to be offset by the increased efficiency of an engineer with at least two years of experience. 

25.  (TT) Labor Categories/17 

Aircraft Mechanic Description states that "...50% of all mechanics will have Airframe and Power Plant (A&P) Licenses; two (2) must be Non-Destructive Inspection certified; 50% of all aircraft mechanics..."  These percentages and numerical requirements appear to be applicable for a total workforce.  An individual person cannot meet these requirements.  Please clarify.

Answer:  The labor category will be modified to clarify the requirements for all applicable Aircraft Mechanics.  The labor category definitions will also be revised.    

39.  (TT)  Ref: Statement Of Work  Para 3.1.8

Paragraph 3.1.8 of the Statement of Work states the contractor shall apply certified quality management processes/practices (industry-specific ISO 9000 or equivalent) to meet the individual D/TO requirements, as required. Does this imply that all contractor functions/organizations performing D/TO efforts must be ISO 9000 or equivalent or certified in all aspects of the D/TO?
Answer:  Yes.  It is intended that the contractor shall apply independently certified quality management processes/practices (within the industry-specific ISO 9000 series) as specified in the individual D/TO requirements.  The SOW will be revised. 

40.  (TT)  Ref: Statement of Work Para 3.3.2.3  

Will flight crews be required for all types of aircraft at all ALC’s and site support areas?

Answer:  No.  SOW will be revised to delete the requirement for qualified flight crew.

44.  (TT) Ref: L-903, Para 4.2 Oral Presentations 

Can we see the orals room in advance? If not, then we would like further information about its setup as follows:

· Is there a podium? What side of the screen is it on and how far away from the screen is it? Does it have a separate light?

· Will the evaluators be seated in classroom or horseshoe style?

· Is the lighting in the room controlled so that we can have the lights low above the screen and bright above the evaluators?

· Can we get a floor plan of the room?

· What is the distance from the speaker to the farthest seated evaluator?

· Will there be a direct feed microphone into the videotaping? If yes, is it lapel or stationary? Will the speaker have room to move?

· Can there be an additional multi-media person to help set up and troubleshoot any equipment mishaps?

Answer: Yes, the offeror can utilize the room one-hour in advance of their presentation.

In response to your follow – up questions:  we have not yet determined where the oral presentations will occur.  Once the location has been established, information regarding the room will be posted to the web site.

47.  (CT)  Ref: Clause H-902 Performance of Work During Crisis e. percentage rate applicable to CLIN

Will the Government consider deleting the not to exceed 25 percent maximum CLIN rate increase for Crisis performance and allow the contractor to propose a percent which may differ for each geographical location?

Answer:  We will delete the 25% maximum.  Please be advised that offerors will be evaluated on the percentage proposed under the “OCONUS factor” set forth in the Cost Evaluation portion of Sections L-903 and M-901.  

51.  (PRIC)  Ref: L-903, Para 5.2.3  

Subparagraph B states that labor rates will be based on a 2080-hour productive man-year.  Was that the actual intent? Productive hours are normally reduced for vacation and holidays.

Answer: The term "productive" will be deleted in the final RFP.  

52.a.  (PRICING)  Ref: L-903, Para 5.2.3 b. (1) a. 
Identify and explain escalation rates used for direct labor. 

Answer:  If you choose to escalate Year 1 rates vs. have another basis for the projected labor rates for out years, then explain what escalation rate was used.

55.  (PRIC)  Ref: L-903, Para 5.3.1  Estimating / Purchasing / Accounting Systems - Prime Offerors and each of its Subcontractors shall provide a summary statement to include adequacy and approval of these systems as determined by the cognizant Administrative Contracting Officer or some other Government agency.  

b.  Does the Government expect this section to provide statements and discussion for every subcontractor’s estimating, purchasing and accounting system, or only to critical first tier subcontractors?

Answer:  This applies to all subcontractors.   

c.  Will subcontractor statements on system adequacy eliminate the prime contractor liability regarding FAR clause flow downs?

Answer:  No, the prime contractor is responsible for the overall performance of the contract.

81.  (TT)  Reference the Statement of Work Draft Revision 11 Dated            18 May 00, Para 3.3.2.8: Infrastructure and Systems Administration 

It is difficult to discern the purpose of this sentence/paragraph.

Please explain what computer or telecommunications systems will be supported and what tasks will be performed.  

Answer:  The computer and communications systems to be supported are potentially any that are used or managed by OC-ALC, OO-ALC or WR-ALC.  The task to be performed could be any support or task that would be applicable to these computer or communications systems and will be specified by individual Delivery/Task Orders.

83.  (TT)  Labor categories - General: 

The long list of labor categories includes a number of apparent duplications that have no obvious reason for existence.  An example is the inclusion of a Ground Vehicle Mechanical Engineer as separate from the generic Mechanical Engineer category, which appears to be an unnecessary degree of specialization.  Such duplications for the sake of  “niche” specialist customers should be eliminated.

Answer:  The variety and qualification levels associated with the labor categories have been formulated based on the Government’s best estimation of the expected D/TOs in conjunction with the FAST SOW.

84.  (TT)  Labor Categories - General: 

Similar to the discussion of duplication, it is unclear the distinction between a “logistics Engineer” and a “Logistician.” Please explain?

Answer:  For the Logistics Engineer category, the statement “a Certified Professional Logistician (CPL) certificate with four years related experience may be substituted for the Bachelor of Science degree” will be removed.  Qualifications for Logistician currently allow substitution of a CPL with four years experience for the BS degree; in addition the labor category will be modified to allow fifteen years experience as a substitution for the degree or certificate requirement.

The labor categories will be revised.

85.  (TT)  Labor categories -General:
Most labor categories that are typically characterized as wage grade in nature (assembler, sheet metal fabricator, etc.) will be hired to perform specific and relatively rare tasks.  As such it is recommended that these labor categories need not be included in the proposal process, but instead dealt with as a function of the occasional situations under which they may be needed.  Manufacturing and repair processes will be used infrequently under this contract, and in many instances the products will be fabricated, assembled, repaired, and tested on a job route or end item completion basis rather than through the use of Time and Material or Cost Reimbursement bases.  Deleting them from contract proposal consideration would reduce unnecessary complexity from the source selection process.

Answer:  The variety and qualification levels associated with the labor categories have been formulated based on the Government’s best estimation of the expected D/TOs in conjunction with the FAST SOW. 

87.  (TT)  Reference the Statement of Work Draft Revision 11 Dated 18 May 00:

a. Para 3.3:  “CONTRACT TASKS” 

Comment:  The contract tasks defined in this SOW are not the traditional ALC Product Management Support tasks and related skills currently performed.  Is it the Air Forces intent to provide support to each ALC function by augmenting the workforce in the performance of functions associated with the Product Support, Business Management and Maintenance?  

Answer: The scope of the FAST acquisition includes technical and professional weapon system sustainment support services, modifications, and critical, limited and contingency spares and repairs of Air Force weapon systems, sub-systems and support systems.  These systems are identified in the HQ AFMC Merged Acquisition/Fielded Systems Portfolio at http://pml.wpafb.af.mil.mafsp/mafsp.asp.

89.  (TT)  Reference:  Section L, Subfactor 3, Team Structure, Table 4.4

Comment:  Assuming software should be in a separate row, would it be reasonable to assume that the entry under “Spares” would be empty?  Likewise, would the Integration blocks for Spares and Repairs be empty as well?  If not, would you please describe a scenario in which these situations would apply?

Answer:  All blocks in the Team Structure Matrix could be filled based on the particular requirement as defined in an individual D/TO.  Scenarios will not be described as completion of the Team Structure Matrix is considered to be a measure of the offeror’s understanding of the FAST requirement.

92.  (TT)  Reference:  Section L, Subfactor 2 Responsiveness, Paragraph b.

This paragraph states “Provide an integrated management plan and schedule.”  We have been unable to locate any reference in the statement of work that defines a requirement for development of an integrated management plan or schedule.  

Answer:  This is referenced in SOW paragraph 3.3.3.

104.  (CT)  Reference: Solicitation Section B, Paragraph B-11, Export Control Notice, Page 11

The solicitation / data packages for the initial contract can be downloaded from the EPS website.  Please explain the intent of this clause.

Answer:  This clause applies to those acquisitions that contain “Export Control” data.  However, we incorrectly annotated this to apply at the basic contract and D/TOs.  In actuality, this will only apply at the D/TO level, and we will correct the annotation to “(***)”.  

109.  (CT)  Reference: Solicitation Section I, Contractor Clauses, Page 30

b)  
Add Workers' Compensation (Defense Base Act) clause(s).

Answer:  The Worker’s Compensation clause, FAR 52.228-3 applies in solicitations/contracts when the Defense Base Act applies and the contract will be financed under the Foreign Assistance Act of 1961.  FAR 52.228-4 applies if the Defense Base Act is waived.  Clause H-902(f) states that the Defense Base Act (42 USC 1651) and the War Hazards Compensation Act (42 USC 1701) apply when services are performed within a crisis location.  These provisions will be added to the RFP and annotated as applicable to D/TOs as specified.

112.  (PRIC / CT)  Reference: Section L, Cost / Price Volume Instruction, Paragraph 5.2.3.b, page 72

The referenced item states: Labor rates shall be based on an eight (8) hour day, forty (40) hour workweek, and a two thousand eighty (2080) hour productive work year.

We assume that the words “productive work year” should be replaced with “gross base hours per year”. If this assumption is not correct, then there would appear to be a requirement that employees that are absent from work for normal vacation, holidays, illness etc. would require replacement during the absence period, which we believe would establish extremely high backfill costs.

Please clarify.

Answer:  The word "productive" will be deleted in the final RFP.

119.  (TT)  Statement of Work, Draft 11, 18 May 00, Labor Category Qualifications Attachment: 

Recommend that experience in lieu of degree requirements be included in several categories which are not presently so indicated, particularly for Logistician and other labor categories which already have many highly experienced people without college degrees working in them at air logistics centers. 

For example, many of the best equipment specialists and item managers presently working at the Air Logistics Centers either as Government employees or as contractors “grew up” in maintenance and other typically non-degreed fields as civilian or enlisted military members.  Losing access to them under FAST would negatively impact use of the FAST contracts, negatively impact the ALC organizations they are presently working in, and negatively impact the warfighters those ALC organizations are supporting.     

Answer: Qualifications for Logistician currently allow substitution of a CPL with four years experience for the BS degree; in addition the labor category will be modified to allow fifteen years experience as a substitution for the degree or certificate requirement.

121.  (TT)  Clause L-903 Paragraph 1.0

Use of the Statement “all Air Force managed weapons systems, support systems, subsystems and components” would seem to include large propulsion engines and ICBM systems.  These were thought to be excluded under FAST.  Are they?

Answer:  No, they are not specifically excluded.  The scope of the FAST acquisition includes technical and professional weapon system sustainment support services, modifications, and critical, limited and contingency spares and repairs of Air Force weapon systems, sub-systems and support systems.  These systems are identified in the HQ AFMC Merged Acquisition/Fielded Systems Portfolio at http://pml.wpafb.af.mil.mafsp/mafsp.asp.

125.  (PRIC)   Clause H-909

For those labor categories subject to the SCA, what is the procedure the Government will follow to escalate the SCA labor categories for years 6 & 7?

Answer:  All labor rates, including those subject to SCA, will be escalated from Year 5 to Years 6 & 7 by specified DRI factors.  However, the SCA categories must still meet the minimum rate(s) set forth in the Wage Determination that is applicable and current at the time of the D/TO.  We will be adding wording in the final RFP.

156.  (PM/TT)  Part 1 The Schedule, Section B, Page 2, para. 1, Description: 3rd sentence

Change to read, “FAST does not include Military Construction, Civil Engineering, Base Operating Support, or existing WR/OO/OC-ALC Non-MIPR’d contracts.”  This will clarify FAST candidate /non-candidate workload.

Answer:  This change will not be incorporated.  The Air Force reserves the right to execute requirements that meet the criteria of the FAST scope of work and provides best value support to the warfighter.

157.  (TT/CT)  Paragraph 4.6 of L-900 

Requires discussion of mission capability and proposal risk.  Where in Volume I and under what subfactor is this to be addressed?  Is this discussion included in the page count?

Answer:  Proposal Risk as used in Section L at Paragraph 4.6 equates to Factor 2 – Proposal Risk as defined in Section M at Paragraph 2.2.  Proposal Risk for Subfactor 1 and Subfactor 2 should be addressed relative to each individual sample task.  Proposal risk for subfactors 3 and 4 should be addressed for each individual subfactor.  Proposal risk for all subfactors will be included within the given page limitation.

159.  (TT)  Can a non-managerial (administrative) project control category be added to the labor categories?

Answer:  No, we do not anticipate a need for non-managerial administrative support control.

161.  (TT)  Ref. SOW Para. 3.3.2.3, Testing, 2nd para
Maintaining qualified flight crews for all AF aircraft would be cost prohibitive; however, it is reasonable to require contractor capability to participate in airborne flight-testing.  Recommend changing the last sentence to read “The contractor shall be capable of furnishing altitude chamber qualified technical personnel on board aircraft to perform such testing.” 

Answer:  Agree. The contractors shall be capable of furnishing technical personnel on board aircraft to perform functions such as testing. These contractor personnel shall provide to the PCO documentation of a current FAA flight physical and aircrew physiological training as required by individual D/TOs."

162.  (TT)  Add to labor categories 

Engineering Cooperative Student. This category has been successfully used on many WR-ALC contracts.  Engineering cooperative students provide an extremely capable, cost effective, best value source of labor and a source of future full time help upon graduation.
Answer: We do not plan to add an entry-level engineer.  While there may be several engineering tasks that could be performed by entry level engineering personnel with less than two years experience, the lower hourly rate would be expected to be offset by the increased efficiency of an engineer with at least two years of experience. 

168.  (TT) Labor category 62, Logistician 

The degree requirements should specifically include "LOGISTICS" in addition to the "Computer Science, Engineering, etc."  This appears to be an oversight.  Additionally, a provision for replacing the degree requirement with experience is strongly encouraged.  Many of the older and best-qualified logisticians with Government, Contractor, and Military experience cannot meet the degree requirements.  Elimination of the use of these resources shrinks the labor pool and drives up the cost.

Answer:  Concur to adding logistics degree.  Qualifications for Logistician currently allow substitution of a CPL with four years experience for the BS degree; in addition fifteen years experience may be substituted for the degree or certificate requirement. Labor categories will be revised to reflect the change.

169.  (TT)  Labor Category 67, Manager
Program degree requirements should specifically include "LOGISTICS" in addition to the "Computer Science, Engineering, etc."   Exclusion of Logistics in the requirements for a Program Manager in an AFMC arena contract is obviously an oversight.

Answer:  Concur

170.  (TT)  In general – With the present economic environment the stipulation requiring Bachelor degrees without experience substitution will extremely limit the pool of available qualified personnel.  Suggest the degree requirements for all labor categories be carefully reviewed.  Numerous non-degreed potential employees with many years of demonstrated performance are available who have far more knowledgeable than a degreed employee with only the minimum experience.  Degrees do not always guarantee capability; however, they do guarantee higher costs.  Substitution of experience in all regimens (except for professional engineers, scientists, etc) should be strongly considered.  On a similar note, suggest review of the education requirements across the board.  Some of the labor categories have NO education requirements at all.

Answer:  No.  The variety and qualification levels associated with the labor categories have been formulated based on the Government’s best estimation of the expected D/TOs in conjunction with the FAST SOW. 
171.  (PRAG) Page 76, L-903, 7.1(b) 

What if your entire team does not have 50 contracts within the last 2 years?  

Answer:  Identify the contracts, which have been performed up to the maximum of 50.

172.  (PRAG)  Page 76, L-903, 7.3.1 

We read this to mean that, as a subcontractor, a team member would only submit 3 relevant contracts.  Is this your intent? 

Answer:  Yes.

189.  (CT)  The RFP states that this contract will be subject to the Service Contract Act of 1965.  As such, why is FAR 52.237-1, Site Visits, excluded from this solicitation.  Request that Government provide a listing of all existing contracts subject to the SCA, and allow site visits where services are to be performed.    

Answer:  This clause has been included (see L-125).  As written, it applies to the basic contract.  If the clause is necessary for an individual RFOP, it will be added at that time.  

199.  (TT / CT)  Will there be a requirement for any non-GFE office space OCONUS?  

Answer:  This is expected to be relatively rare.  If this is required, it will be addressed for the individual D/TO.  

218.  (TT)  Reference Representative Contract Labor Categories and Addendum, Additional Labor Categories

There is a labor category “Manager, Program”  #67 on the Representative Contact Labor Categories and a “Program Manager” #1 on the Addendum. Is this intended to be the same labor category or two different labor categories?

Answer:  They are two different categories.

222.  (TT)  Labor category 62, Logistician
Suggest the degree requirements specifically include "LOGISTICS" in addition to the "Computer Science, Engineering, etc." Additionally, a provision for replacing the degree requirement with experience is strongly encouraged.  Many of the older and best-qualified logisticians with Government, Contractor, and Military experience cannot meet the degree requirements.  Elimination of the use of these resources shrinks the labor pool, warfighter support, and drives up cost.

Answer:  Concur to adding logistics degree.  Qualifications for Logistician currently allow substitution of a CPL with four years experience for the BS degree; in addition fifteen years experience may be substituted for the degree or certificate requirement.

223.  (TT)  Labor Category 67, Manager, Program 

Suggest the degree requirements specifically include "LOGISTICS" in addition to the "Computer Science, Engineering, etc."   

Answer:  Concur.

224.  (TT)  In general, suggest the degree requirements for all labor categories be carefully considered.  The cost of labor is always elevated when a degree is required.  Additionally, numerous non-degreed potential employees with many years of experience are far more knowledgeable than a degreed employee with only the minimum experience requirements.  Degrees do not guarantee capability – they do guarantee higher costs.  Substitution of experience in all regimens (except for professional engineers, scientists, etc.) should be strongly considered.  On a similar note, suggest review of the education requirements across the board.  Some of the labor categories have no education requirements at all.

Answer:  No.  The variety and qualification levels associated with the labor categories have been formulated based on the Government’s best estimation of the expected D/TOs in conjunction with the FAST SOW. 

238.  (TT/CT) Are there any limitations on the “color of money” used on FAST?  For example, could FAST be used with MSD dollars to both repair and accomplish form, fit and function product reliability improvements?  

Answer:  No, it is the responsibility of the weapon system program manager to ensure that program dollars are correctly spent.

240.  (TT) Given that repairs include contingency, limited and critical – will AF program managers be required to process 50/50 contract organic waivers before initiating FAST repair orders?

Answer:  Yes, the Weapon System Program Manager must obtain the appropriate certifications prior to submitting the requirement to the FAST Program Office.

243.  (CT) How many days between RFP release and proposal due date?  

Answer:  The initial pricing information (rates) and Past Performance Information will be due in 30 days after release of the RFP.  Sample tasks will be released on day 31.  The remainder of the proposal is due in 14 days after release of the sample tasks.  Total days:  45.  

245.  (TT) Discuss intent to Partner with Depot.

Answer:  The Prime contractor determines if, for what requirement, and when he desires to partner with an organic depot.  If the Prime contractor decides to partner with a Government Depot, it is the Prime Contractor's responsibility to negotiate the partnering agreement with the appropriate depot.  The FAST contracting officer will hold the prime contractor responsible for all contractual requirements regardless of any partnering agreement between the prime and an organic depot.

249. (PRIC) What kinds of contracts will be used for comparison for cost reasonableness?

Answer:   We have used various AF contracts for same or similar work as well as the Army’s contract - R2CSR.  In addition, we are using Salary Surveys - some which provide information on the web, and some that we have purchased.   This information will be used to determine the range of reasonable salaries for each category.  

250. (PM) At one time, anticipated work distribution was 57% A&AS, 43% repair/spares/mods?  Are these still accurate?

Answer:  The anticipated work distribution is 43% services, 17% mods, 20% repair, and 20% spares.

253. (PRIC) Cost questions:

(a) Evaluating / pricing OCONUS rates

(b) Evaluation of total add-on costs

(c) Evaluating total cost: How will subs’ costs/prices be evaluated?

Answer:  (a)  The composition of the OCONUS Add-on factor should be determined in accordance with the offeror's Disclosure Statement.  The loaded labor rate that is in the contract will be used as the base rate to which the OCOUS factor is applied.   The following is an example of how we anticipate the OCONUS factor being used.  We have also shown how profit/fee would be applied.  We will add these examples to the final Excel spreadsheets to be posted to the Web.
OCONUS Add On factor

















T & M

CR

FP



(base labor rate includes profit)

(base labor rate doesn't include fee)

(base labor rate doesn't include profit)

Base labor rate from Contract

$50.00 

$40.00 

$40.00 

OCONUS FACTOR:
10%
$5.00
10%
$4.00
10%
$4.00

     Subtotal

$55.00 

$44.00 

$44.00 

Fee/Profit (at the D/TO level)
0

8%
$3.52
10%
$4.40





$47.52 

$48.40 

(b) Add-on factors, and what they include, are described in L-903, 5.2.4.  The Add-on factors are for additional costs that are over and above those included in the proposed rate.  We have included an example of how we anticipate these factors being used.  We have also shown how profit/fee would be applied.  We will add these examples to the final Excel spreadsheets to be posted to the web.

Material Add-On factor

















T & M

CR

FP

Material Cost

$100.00 

$100.00 

$100.00 

Material FACTOR:
7%
$7.00
7%
$7.00
7%
$7.00

     Subtotal
*
$107.00 

$107.00 

$107.00 

Fee/Profit (at the D/TO level)
0

8%
$8.56
10%
$10.70





$115.56 

$117.70 









*Material will be cost reimbursable with no profit on T&M type D/TO











Subcontract Add-On factor

















T & M

CR

FP



(base labor rate includes profit)

(base labor rate doesn't include fee)

(base labor rate doesn't include profit)

Base labor rate from subcontractor
$45.00 

$37.00 

$37.00 

Subcontract FACTOR:
5%
$2.25
5%
$1.85
5%
$1.85

     Subtotal

$47.25 

$38.85 

$38.85 

Fee/Profit (at the D/TO level)
0

8%
$3.11
10%
$3.89





$41.96 

$42.74 









 (c) The subcontractors' proposed rates will be evaluated for reasonableness and realism in the same manner as the prime contractor's rates .

254.  (CT) Ref SF 1447 block 11.  

Do you want 120 days or 180 days?

Answer:  180 days.  

257. (PRIC/CT) Ref L-900 5.2.3.b.
Please clarify that you want us to use 2080 hours for each year of the contract, even though some years, the year 2001 for example, have 2088 available hours.

Answer:  Wording will be added to the final RFP stating: “Any Leap year will consist of a two thousand eighty eight (2088) hours work year.”

258.  (CT) Will there be any task orders that only the 2 small business primes are allowed to bid; or will all task orders be open to bid by all contract award winners (small and large)  or  will there be any task orders that large primes will be restricted from bidding on?

Answer:  No.  This is not a set-aside.  Small business awardees will compete with large business awardees for task orders.

263.  (CT) What is meant by 15% directed to small business?  Does it mean the 2 SB primes will be given 15% of the work, which will then be competed by task among them?

Answer:  No.  This is not a set-aside.  We mean that it is our intent to award 15% of all FAST dollars to small business awardees.  

264.  (CT) Will the 23% minimum to small business be sub-divided into percentages to SDB, WOB, HUBZone, etc?

Answer:  There are goals set forth in clause IB-445, AFMCFARS 5319.705-5(a) of SDB – 5%; WOB- 5%; HUBZone – 1.5%.  These goals are not additive to the 23% requirement.  

265.  (CT) Decentralized ordering authority:  Will this authority be limited to the 3 ALCs or will other AF organizations (i.e. Product Centers) be allowed to process orders?
Answer:  Initially, yes.  See clause IB-432, AFMCFARS 5316.506-90 and 5316.703-90(a).  

“Note:  Other centers within the Air Force may use this contract.  However, all orders must be issued by Procuring Contracting Officers at the centers cited in this clause.  Issuance authority may be expanded at a future date.”

266.  (CT) Direct small business awards are a goal of FAST.  With the 1500 person size standard and an allocated annual awards of $70-$80 mil the two winners will be large immediately.  What does the FAST contract do other than fill some SBA square based on SIC and two mega-winners?

Answer:  The goals of FAST are:

(1)  Support the program manager / warfighter.

(2)  Reduce costs.

(3)  Increase utilization of and dollars to small business through prime and subcontracting awards.  

Our uniquely crafted acquisition strategy will allow accomplishment of all of these goals 

277.  (CT) Is the 23% requirement a goal or a requirement? 

Answer:  A requirement.  The subsets for SDB, WOB, and HUBZone are goals

281.  (CT) How will task order opportunities be conveyed to FAST contractor teams?

Answer:  Our plans are to do as much electronically as possible.  Complete details are not available at this time.

282.  (CT) Please confirm – will only those 6 contractors who are awarded the FAST contract be allowed to compete for FAST awards?

Answer:  Yes, the awardees will be the only contractors that will be allowed to compete for FAST task orders.  

283.  (CT) Will all 6 contractors bid on all proposed work?

Answer:  All awardees will be given the opportunity to compete for all task orders, unless one of the exemptions set forth under Air Force FAR Supplement 5352.216-9001 applies (commonly known as the “Fair Opportunities” clause). 

284.  (CT) Under Reserved Small Business will the 51% rule for set asides apply?  In other words, will 51% of the work be required to be accomplished by small business on the team or can a large team member do the vast majority.

Answer:  This is not a set-aside; therefore, the 51% rule does not apply.
290.  (PM) The following distribution of work was previously provided:

Services

57%

Mods


18%

Spares

14%

Repairs

11%

Does this distribution still apply?

Answer:  The workload expected under FAST is distributed as follows:

Services

43%

Mods


17%

Spares

20%

Repairs

20%

292.  (CT) Can subcontractors be added after the contract award?

Answer:  Yes, with PCO authorization and approval in writing.  

293.  (PM) You addressed the relationship between FAST and SSSC/EASES in the Pre-solicitation Conference.  Please discuss DESP in connection with FAST.

Answer:  DESP and FAST are contractual vehicles that are available for program managers to use to support their customer’s needs.  Though there are some similarities, we believe that DESP will continue to be utilized for the specific needs it meets.  

294. (PRIC) Are rates required for all labor categories from all team members, even though many labor categories will not be used during the contract by all of the team members?

Answer:  No.  It is the Prime Offeror’s responsibility to ensure that all labor categories are proposed for the team.  It is not a requirement for each team member to propose each category.   [Duplicate Question.]

296.  (CT) What is the Small Business SIC Code and Size Standard for the two small business awards?

Answer:  The SIC Code for all awardees is 3721, 1500 employees.  

297.  (CT) The contract size is $7.4 billion over 7 years.  Does that mean that each of the six awards are worth $7.4 each or are all six awards combined worth $7.4 billion?

Answer:  $7.4 billion aggregate for all awardees over 7 years.

299.  (TT) L-903, 4.2.7.2., Slides.  

The paragraph specifies black and white slides for text presentations with colored slides optional for graphic slides.  Power Point allows for production of all slides in color and when tastefully done provides for much more pleasant viewing by the audience than flipping from black and white to color slides.  We suggest that color be optional for all slides with a restriction to avoid bold colors and elaborate presentations.

Answer:  Thanks for the suggestion, but the Government evaluators prefer that black and white slides be used.  

302. (PRIC/TT) The answer to question 194 of the Questions from Industry states that all rates submitted by each team member, both prime and subcontractors will be evaluated.  Paragraph 2.4.(1)(d)(2) of Section M-901 of the RFP states that the rates used in the Sample Task will be evaluated for reasonableness.  Which is correct?  What is to prevent “gaming” by applying cheap labor rate categories to the sample tasks, especially with the large number of labor categories that are very similar?  For example, Engineer Quality Assurance and Engineer Reliability and Maintainability are very similar, as are Engineer Mechanical and Engineer Mechanical Ground Vehicles.

Answer:  All rates of each team member will be evaluated for reasonableness.  Also, Sample Tasks will be evaluated for reasonableness and realism.  We have made every effort to prevent "gaming" in the proposal process.  Offerors have been instructed in the (D)RFP that Sample Tasks are not precluded from award..  For this reason, offerors should bid Sample tasks as if they were real – because they may be awarded.

306. (PRIC) It is our understanding that the standard H&W benefit has been revised from $1.63 to $1.92 effective 1 June 2000.  Does the Government intend to revise the AWD Health and Welfare hourly rate?

Answer:  The most current Wage Determination(s) will be incorporated into the final RFP; also, the most current Wage Determination(s) will be incorporated into the final contract award.

307.  (PRIC) If rates bid are "not to exceed" and rates proposed for T/DO's can be lower, can the same approach be used for Sample Tasks, i.e., can Sample Tasks be bid at rates lower that those submitted with (our) proposal?

Answer:  No.  L-900. 5.2.5. Sample Task Summary Pages states that the rates and Add-on factors WILL REFLECT those in the attached Rate Tables of the solicitation.  In addition, M-900  2.4 Factor 4-Cost or Price Factor,  Paragraph (2)  states:  

“Failure to utilize the rates and/or factors proposed in the attached Rate Tables in the Pricing of the sample tasks will result in an offeror being rejected and disqualified for award.”

308.  (PRIC) Understand "no profit" on materials, however is there a "material handling fee" in effect?  If so, what percentage?

Answer:  The comment "no profit" on material is applicable to T&M effort.  Normal material handling charges are allowed and can be recouped through proposed Add-on Factors, as directed in L-900, 5.2.4.

309.  (PRIC) Congressman Chambliss has introduced a resolution that the wage grade salaries of employees at WR-ALC be based not on Macon GA rates but on Atlanta GA rates.  This salary increase, if passed, will affect salaries for contractors in the Warner Robins area.  Can rates be adjusted if this resolution is passed, or will DRI take this into consideration?

Answer:  The contract will be updated annually for the most current Wage Determinations.  Any change in the Macon GA Wage Determination applicability would be incorporated into the contract at the time it occurs.  DRI is independent of Wage Determinations.

310.  (PRIC) 

a.  Please consider how Prime "pass through" and/or management oversight costs will be mandated/controlled/evaluated, i.e., high pass through will make Small Business Team members less competitive, less attractive to the Government, and less profitable to the small business.  This money must come from somewhere, and so far your draft RFP nor your FAST presentations/descriptions have even recognized this very important cost element nor provided an evaluation and/or control mechanism. 

b.  Will the same evaluation factors be used when competing D/TO's as the Basic contract?  At what level and how/what procedures will be used?

Answer:

a.  Prime contractor management costs for "pass through" subcontracts will be captured and evaluated as included in the Subcontract labor Add-on factors, with direction specified in L-900, 5.2.4. (b).  

b.  No, the same evaluation factors will not be used for each D/TO competed under FAST.  Clause H-906 sets forth Ordering Procedures, and highlights possible factors in paragraph b. that could be used for evaluation purposes at the D/TO level.  This listing is not all-inclusive, but is representative of the factors that may be evaluated.  Specific factors/subfactors will be determined by the program manager and ordering contracting officer for that particular D/TO.

311.  (PRIC)  On page 72 of the DRFP, section 5.2.3 – In regards to Business Segments, Do these have to have separate Disclosure Statements?

Answer:  They may be differentiated by DCAA approval of separate rates – it does not necessarily have to be separate Disclosure Statements.    Wording in the final RFP will read something like:  “Contractors with multiple business segments, units, or divisions, will be permitted to submit labor rates for each business segment, unit, or division that will be performing work on this contract, as governed by the appropriate disclosure statement or agreement with DCAA.  This will be allowed for up to 7 segments, units, or divisions for a Contractor. “

312.  (PRIC) Three labor categories, Journeyman Engineer Analyst, Senior Computer Engineer, and Librarian, are included in ATCH 4 but not in the Rate Tables, ATCH 5.  Please clarify.

Answer:  These categories were inadvertently left in the ATCH category descriptions and will be deleted in the final RFP. 

Attachment 4, will delete those  3 categories and the categories formerly listed as “to be considered” in the Addendum will be   renumbered to match the Rate Tables.

313.  (PRIC) Request for Economic Price Adjustment clause and/or Reopener clause for changes to FPRA's subsequent to award.

Answer:  A type of Price Adjustment clause will be included in the final contract that provides for DRI type adjustments to 5th year labor rates for Option (yrs 6 & 7).  No Reopener clause will be included for FPRA changes
315.  (PRIC) Relative to the Add-on Factors, clarify when profit/fee is and is not applicable.

Answer:  We anticipate that many of the orders will be T&M, and material will be reimbursed at cost, without profit.  All other factors will be applied to their appropriate cost and will have profit proposed at the D/TO level – depending on the Contract type (Fixed Price or Cost Reimbursement).  The final RFP and Rate Table spreadsheet for Add-on factors will reflect these changes.  

316.  (PRIC)  Should the Prime contractor's proposal include all rates for all subcontractors?

Answer: Yes.  However, any proprietary information or supporting data may be submitted directly to the PCO, if preferred.  It is the responsibility of the Prime Contractor to ensure that all categories are proposed within their team.  All rates, prime and subs, will be included in the contract, although it is not a requirement for each subcontractor to proposed every category.

317.  (PRIC)  Section L, Cost / Price Volume Instruction, Paragraph 5.2.3.b, page 72 references the following: Labor rates shall be based on an eight (8) hour day, forty (40) hour workweek, and a two thousand eighty (2080) hour productive work year.

Answer:  We will delete the word “productive” from the final RFP.

318.  (PRIC)  Is it permissible for bidders to insert columns within the individual worksheets?

Answer:  Offerors may add additional columns, calculations, etc. as long as they do not affect the Rate Table formulas, calculations or print out of the sheets.  

319.  (PRIC)  There are two specific/minor errors in the Rate Table spreadsheets.    

Answer:  

–Summary Rates - Onsite tab: The formula in  cell D144 contains an error that is carried through cell D166. You can copy cell D143 to D144-D166 to correct. 

–Summary on-site tab: prints out portrait format on page 1 and landscape on pages 2,3.  Change pages 2,3 to print in portrait format.  

Corrections will be put on the web page, or you can correct formulas in the spreadsheet manually.

320.  (PM) Did the Government conduct a survey to determine how many small businesses qualify as responsible offerors under SIC 3721?  If so, what were the

results?

Answer:  A business, large or small, is not determined "qualified" based on the selection of a SIC code for an acquisition.  A business is qualified based on the fact that it delivers supplies or services to the Government that meets its requirements / specifications.  The responsibility of an offeror of any size shall be established prior to contract award in accordance with FAR 9.104.  

The SIC code classifies and defines activities by industry categories and is the source used by SBA as a guide in defining industries for size standards.  The number of employees or annual receipts indicates the maximum allowed for a concern, including its affiliates, to be considered small.  

We did conduct market research, and held discussions with industry.  Our research and communication indicates that several businesses that would fall below the 1500 employee size standard established by the SIC 3721 do plan to submit proposals as prime contractors in response to the FAST solicitation.

